ECS

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that 9*Annual General Meeting of ECS Biztech Limited is re
scheduled to be held at the registered office of the Company on Monday, 16™ Day of
December, 2019 at 5:00 P.M. to transact following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THATthe board’s report, the statement of profit and loss and the cash
flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2019 and the balance sheet as at that date,
together with the independent auditors’ report thereon be and are hereby considered,
approved and adopted”.

To re-appoint Mr. Vijay Mandora (DIN: 00328792), who is liable to retire by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 139, 142 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (“Rules”) (including any statutory modification or re-enactment
thereof, for the time being in force), the Company hereby appoint M/s Purshottam
Khandelwal & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 123825W), as
Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General
Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company to be held in the
year 2020.”

Date: 14/11/2019 For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Place: Ahmedabad ECS Biztech Limited

Vijay MansinhbhaiMandora
Managing Director
DIN: 00328792
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1. A Member Entitled To Attend And Vote At The AGM Of The Company Is Entitled
To Appoint A Proxy To Attend And Vote On A Poll Instead Of Himself And The
Proxy Need Not Be A Member. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Act,
a person can act as a proxy on behalf of not more than fifty Members and holding in
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total Share Capital of the Company.
Members holding more than ten percent of the total Share Capital of the Company
may appoint a single person as proxy, who shall not act as a proxy for any other
Member. The instrument appointing Proxy shall be deposited at the Registered Office
of the Company at least FORTY-EIGHT HOURS before the time for holding the
Meeting. Proxy Form for the AGM is enclosed. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited
companies, societies, etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution/authority,
as applicable.

2. The business set out in the Notice will be transacted through electronic voting system
and the Company is providing facility for voting by electronic means. Instructions and
other information relating to e-voting are given in this Notice at the end.

3. Members/ proxies are requested to bring their duly filled-in attendance slips enclosed
herewith to attend the Meeting mentioning therein details of their DP and Client ID/
Folio No.

4. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the
Meeting are requested to send to the Company, a certified copy of the Board
Resolution authorising their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the
Meeting.

5. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in
the order of names will be entitled to vote.

6. Relevant documents referred to in the Notice are open for inspection by the Members
at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days between 11.00 A.M. and
01.00 P.M. till the date of the Meeting.

7. Information as required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODRRegulations”) in respect of
appointment of Director is furnished in the annexed Explanatory Statement and forms
part ofthe notice.

8. All correspondence relating to change of address, change in the e-mail ID already
registered with the Company, transfer/transmission of shares, issue of duplicate share
certificates, bank mandates and all other matters relating to the shareholding in the
Company may be made to M/s. PURVA SHAREGISTRY (INDIA) PRIVATE
LIMITED., the registrar and share transfer agent. The Members holding shares in
dematerialised form may send such communication to their respective depository
participant/s (DPs).

NOTES
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9. Members can avail the facility of nomination in respect of shares held by them
pursuant to the provisionsof section 72 of the Act. Members desiring to avail this
facility may send their nomination in the prescribed Form no. SH13, duly filled in to
the Company / RTA / DP. The prescribed form can be obtained from the RTA / DPs
as well as downloaded from the Company’s website, http://ecsbiztech.com/

10. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company would remain
closed on Tuesday, 10"December, 2019 for determining the names of Members
eligible for voting at the Meeting.

11. The Members whose names appear on the Company’s Register of Members as on
Monday, 09" December, 2019 (“cut-offdate”) will be eligible to attend and vote at the
Meeting.

12. As an eco-friendly measure intending to benefit the society at large, we request you to
be part of the e-initiative andregister your e-mail address to receive all communication
and documents including annual reports from time to time in electronic form to the e-
mail ID provided by you. Members holding shares in dematerialised form, may send
such communication to their respective DPs and those holding shares in physical form,
may send such communication to Purva.

13. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to avail dematerialisation
facility.

14. Pursuant to Sections 101 and 136 of the Act read with relevant Rules framed
thereunder, the Annual Report for FY2018-19and the Notice of the AGM, inter-alia
indicating the process and manner of Remote e-voting alongwith the attendance slip
and proxy form are being sent by e-mail to those Members who have registered their
e-mail ID either with the Company or with the Depository unless the Member has
requested for a hard copy of the same. For Members who have not registered their e-
mail ID, physical copies of the Annual Report for FY 2018-19 and the Notice of the
AGM, inter-alia, indicating the process and manner of Remote e-voting along with
the attendance slip and proxy form, will be sent in the permitted mode.

15. Notice of the AGM and Annual Report of the Company, is made available on the
Company’s website, http://ecsbiztech.com/ for download.

16. As an austerity measure, copies of the Annual Report will not be distributed at the
Annual General Meeting. Members arerequested to bring their copy of Annual Report
to the Meeting.

17. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has mandated the submission
of Permanent Account Number (“PAN”)by every participant in securities market.
Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the
Company/Purva.

18. Shareholders can register their complaints, if any, on an exclusive designated e-mail
ID, Secretarial@ecscorporation.com
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19. Shareholders are requested to send their queries, if any, on Annual Report, to the
Company Secretary, at least seven days before the date of Meeting, so that the requisite
information/ explanations can be provided in time.

20. The Company has engaged the services of National Securities Services Limited
(NSDL) as the Agency to provide e-voting facility.

21. Mr. GautamVirsadiya, Practising Company Secretary has been appointed as the
Scrutinizer for conducting the remote e-voting and the voting process at the AGM in
a fair and transparent manner.

22. The Scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of the vote shall be final.

23. Once the vote on a resolution stated in this notice is cast by shareholder through
Remote e-voting, the shareholder shallnot be allowed to change it subsequently and
such e-vote shall be treated as final. The Members who have cast their voteby Remote
e-voting may also attend the Meeting; however, such member shall not be allowed to
vote again.

24. The Scrutinizer will submit his report to the Company after completion of the scrutiny
and the Results will be declared bythe Company on its website,
http://ecsbiztech.com/within 48 hours of the conclusion of the AGM.
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Annexure to the Notice of Annual General Meeting

Details of Directors seeking Appointment/Reappointment in Annual General Meeting

Name of Director

Mr.Vijay Mandora

Age (Yrs.)

45 years

Brief Resume and expertise

B. Tech in electronics and Telecom and having
experience of more 25 years in the field IT

Designation Chairman and Managing Director

Terms and Conditions of As per the resolution of the Notice convening Annual
Appointment / | General Meeting on Monday, December 16, 2019 read
Reappointment with explanatory statement thereto, Mr. Vijay Mandora is

proposed tobe re-appointed as an Executive Chairman and
Managing Director ofthe company.

Remuneration proposed to
be paid

Within maximum limit as approved by the shareholders.

Date of first appointment on
the Board

29.11.2010

Chairman/Member of the
Committee of the Board of
Directors of the Company

Audit Committee, Member

No. of Shares held in the | 12575390
Company
Other Directorship 1. ECS Infotech Pvt Ltd, Director

2. Laurels Management Pvt Ltd, Director
3. Mandora Finserve Pvt Ltd, Director

Date: 14/11/2019
Place: Ahmedabad
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The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

I. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by
the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and
Clause 35B of the Listing Agreement, the Company is pleased to provide members
facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at
the Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be
transacted through e-Voting Services. The facility of casting the votes by the
members using an electronic voting system from a place other than venue of the
AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL).

II. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM
and the members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-
voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper.

III. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may
also attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

IV.  Theremote e-voting period commences on Friday, 13* December, 2019 at 9.00
a.m. and ends on Sunday, 15" December, 2019 at 5.00 p.m. During this period
members’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of Monday,09"™ December , 2019,
may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be
disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast
by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

V. The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:

A. Incase a Member receives an email from NSDL [for members whose email IDs
are registered with the Company/Depository Participants(s)] :

(1) Open email and open PDF file viz; “remote e-voting.pdf” with your Client
ID or Folio No. as password. The said PDF file contains your user ID and
password/PIN for remote e-voting. Please note that the password is an
initial password.
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(i) Launch internet browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

(1i1) Click on Shareholder - Login

(iv) Put user ID and password as initial password/PIN noted in step (i) above.
Click Login.

(v) Password change menu appears. Change the password/PIN with new
password of your choice with minimum 8 digits/characters or combination
thereof. Note new password. It is strongly recommended not to share your
password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential.

(vi) Home page of remote e-voting opens. Click on remote e-voting: Active
Voting Cycles.

(vii)Select “EVEN” of “ECS Biztech Limited”.
(vii)  Now you are ready for remote e-voting as Cast Vote page opens.

(ix) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option and click on “Submit” and
also “Confirm” when prompted.

(x) Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

(x1) Once you have voted on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify
your vote.

(xi1) Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are
required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board
Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature
of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the
Scrutinizer through e-mail to kumarpal@outlook.com with a copy marked
to evoting@nsdl.co.in
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B. In case a Member receives physical copy of the Notice of AGM [for members

whose email IDs are not registered with the Company/Depository
Participants(s) or requesting physical copy] :

(1) Initial password is provided as below/at the bottom of the Attendance
Slip forthe AGM:

EVEN (Remote e-voting Event Number) USER ID
PASSWORD/PIN

(i1) Please follow all steps from Sl. No. (ii) to Sl. No. (xii) above, to cast vote.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)
for Members and remote e-voting user manual for Members available at the
downloads section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-222-
990.

If you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use
your existing user ID and password/PIN for casting your vote.

You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile
details of the folio which may be used for sending future communication(s).

The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid
up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of Monday,
December 9, 2019.

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the
Company after dispatch of the notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date
1.e. Monday, December 9, 2019, may obtain the login ID and password by
sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or Issuer/RTA.

However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you
can use your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot
your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User
Details/Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact
NSDL at the following toll free no.: 1800-222-990.
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XI. A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote
through remote e-voting but shall not be allowed to vote again at the AGM.

XII. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register
of beneficial owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only
shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting at the
AGM through ballot paper.

XIII.  Mr. GautamVirsadiya, PCS has been appointed for as the Scrutinizer for
providing facility to the members of the Company to scrutinize the voting and
remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

XIV. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions
on which voting is to be held, allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by
use of “remote e-voting” or “Ballot Paper” for all those members who are
present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote  e-
voting facility.

XV.  The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will
first count the votes cast at the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast
through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the
employment of the Company and shall make, not later than three days of the
conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes
cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him
in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting
forthwith.

XVI. The Results declared alongwith the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on
the website of the Company www.ecsbiztech.com and on the website of NSDL
immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman or a person
authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately forwarded
to the BSE Limited, Mumbai
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9" Annual General Meeting

Monday16™ December,2019
ATTENDANCE SLIP
(To be presented at the entrance)

Full name and address
of the shareholder

Full name of the proxy

(to be filled in if proxy form
has been duly deposited with
the company)

Registered foliono. /
DP ID & client ID

No. of equity shares held
Email ID
I certify that I am a member/proxy/authorized representative for the member of the

company. I hereby accord my presence at the 9" annual general meeting of the company at
the registered office of the company on Monday, 16™ December, 2019 at 5:00 pm.

Signature of the member/proxy
(To be signed at the time of
Handling over this slip)

Notes

1. Persons attending the annual general meeting are requested to bring their copies
ofannualreport.

2. Jointshareholdersmayuse Xerox
copiesorobtainadditionalattendanceslipatthevenueofthemeeting.

3.
Bodiescorporate,whetheracompanyornot,whoaremembers,mayattendthroughtheirauthorize
drepresentativeappointedunderSection113oftheCompanies

Act,2013. Acopyofauthorizationshouldbedepositedwiththecompany.
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9" Annual General Meeting
Monday, 16™ December,2019

Proxy Form
(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

Name of the Member

Registered Address

Email

Folio No/Client Id

DP ID

1I/We, being the member(s) holding equity shares of ECS Biztech Limited, hereby appoint;

Name:

Address:

Email Id: Signature or failing him/her

Name:

Address:

Email Id: Signature or failing him/her

Name:

Address:

Email Id: Signature
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As my/or proxy to attain and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 9" Annual
General Meeting of the company scheduled on Monday, 16™ December, 2019 at 5:00 pm at

the registered office of the Company and at any adjourned meeting thereof in respect of
such resolutions as are indicated herein:

Sr. No | Resolution Vote For Vote Against
1 To receive, consider and adopt the audited
financial statements of the company for the
financial year ended on March 31, 2019
together with reports of the directors and
auditors thereon.

2 To re-appoint Mr.Vijay Mandora (DIN:
00328792), who is liable to retire by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment
3 To appointment of statutory auditors of the
company due to casual vacancy

Signed day of 2019.

Signature of the Member

Signature of 1% proxy Signature of 2™ proxy Signature of 3" proxy

Notes

1. For the resolutions, explanatory statements and notes, please refer to the notice of
the 9" annual general meeting.

2. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
registered office of the company, not less than 48 hours before commencement of the meeting.
3. A proxyneed not be a member of the company.

4.1t 1s optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the ‘for’ or ‘against’ column blank
against any or all of theresolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he /
she may deem appropriate.

5.Those members who have multiple folios with different joint holders may usexerox copies
of this attendance slip/proxyform.
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To,
The Members,
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Annual Report on the business and

operations of the Company and the Audited Accounts for the Financial Year ended 31st
March, 2019.

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

Income for the year 3,53,56,129 3,70,90,346

Expenditure for the year excluding Depreciation 18,76,94,408 4,64,90,035

and Amortization Exp.

Profit or Loss before Depreciation and | -15,23,38,279 -93,99,689

Amortization Exp

Less: Depreciation and Amortization Exp 74,55,512 1,09,23,674

Profit or Loss after Depreciation and | (15,97,93,791) (2,03,23,363)

Amortization Exp. But before Tax

Less: Tax 0 1,97,93,430

Profit or Loss After Tax (15,97,93,791) (4,01,16,793)
2. PERFORMANCE:

Income from the business has decreased as compared to previous year and consequently total
revenue for the year has decreased. However, due to rise in cost of expenses, the Company
has incurred loss during the year. The Management of the Company is taking efforts for the
development of the Company.

3. DIVIDEND:

Due to loss during the year, the Company is not able to declare Dividend.

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVE:

Reserves & Surplus at the end of the year stood at (14,63,99,862) as compared to
(13,09,23,893) at the beginning of the year.

5. SHARE CAPITAL:

At present, the Company has only one class of shares — equity shares with face value of 10/-
each. The authorized share capital of the company is 40,00,00,000/- divided into 4,00,00,000
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equity shares of 10/- each. The paid up share capital of the company is 20,55,50,470/- divided
into 2,05,55,047 equity shares of 10/- each.

6. DEPOSITS:

Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

7. ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE:

During the period under review, several energy conservation initiatives were adopted and
were taken by the Company. There are no plans to import any kind of technology for the
project and hence information regarding its absorption is not applicable. There was no
research activities carried out during the year as well as no foreign exchange income or outgo
during the year.

8. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY:

There were no such material changes occurred subsequent to the close of the financial year of
the Company to which the balance sheet relates and the date of the report which can affect
the financial position of the Company.

9. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS:

No orders have been passed by the Regulators/Court or Tribunals which can impact the going
concern status and Company’s operation in future.

10. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:
There are no Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies.

11. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENT BY THE
COMPANY:

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments, if any covered under the provisions of Section
186 of the Act are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.
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12. MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

During the year under the review, 5 (five) Board meetings were held, with gap between
Meetings not exceeding the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules
made thereunder. Details of Board and Board committee meetings held during the year are
given in the Corporate Governance Report. The Board meeting dates are finalized in
consultation with all directors and agenda papers backed up by comprehensive notes and
detailed background information are circulated well in advance before the date of the meeting
thereby enabling the Board to take informed decisions.

The intervening gap between the Board Meetings was within the period prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013.

13. EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN:

An extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is attached herewith as ANNEXURE-II.

14. INSURANCE:

All the Properties of the Company are adequately insured.

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company which
may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large and thus disclosure in
Form AOC-2 is not required.

16. DIRECTORATE AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

The Board of Directors of your company has various executive and non-executive directors
including Independent Directors who have wide and varied experience in different disciplines
of corporate functioning. In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Vijay Mandora retires by rotation
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible in terms of Section 164 of the Act

offers himself for re-appointment.

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence
as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.
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17. EVALUATION OF BOARD, COMMITTEES AND DIRECTORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the corporate governance requirements as prescribed
by Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), Regulations 2015, the Board had carried out performance evaluation of its
own, the Board Committees and of the Independent directors.

Independent Directors at a separate meeting evaluated performance of the Non-Independent
Directors, Board as a whole and of the Chairman of the Board.

The following were the Evaluation Criteria:

(a) For Independent Directors:
- Knowledge and Skills
- Professional conduct
- Duties, Role and functions

(b) For Executive Directors:
- Performance as Team Leader/Member.
- Evaluating Business Opportunity and analysis of Risk Reward Scenarios
- Key set Goals and achievements
- Professional Conduct, Integrity
- Sharing of Information with the Board

The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

18. POLICY ON APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS:

The Board has on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee,
formulated criteria for determining Qualifications, Positive Attributes and Independence of a
Director.

19. MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION:

The Company had not paid any remuneration toExecutive Directors or Non-Executive or
Independent Director during the financial year ended 31st March, 2019.
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20. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence
as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018.

21. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

During the year, in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has not re-
constituted any of its Committees.

There are currently Three Committees of the Board, as follows:
Audit Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

Details of all the Committees along with their charters, composition and meetings held during
the year, are provided in the “Report on Corporate Governance’’, a part of this Annual
Report.

22. AUDITORS:

A. Statutory Auditors

M/s. Purshottam Khandelwal & Co., (Firm Registration No. 123825W) Chartered
Accountants, Ahmedabad Statutory Auditors, due to casual vacancy of existing auditor, were
appointed for a period till the conclusion of Annual General Meeting to be held in 2019-2020
, subject to ratification at every Annual General Meeting in terms of Section 139 of the
Companies Act 2013.

Due to resignation of M/s. Kajarekar & Co., Chartered accountants, M/s. Purshottam
Khandelwal & Co., (Firm Registration No. 123825W) Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad
have confirmed their eligibility and willingness for the next term from the conclusion of
ensuing annual general meeting to the conclusion of next annual general meeting. The Board
of Directors, therefore, recommends appointment for F.Y. 2019-20 of M/s. Purshottam
Khandelwal & Co., (Firm Registration No. 123825W), Chartered Accountants, as statutory
auditors of the company for the approval of Shareholders.

The Company has obtained a written confirmation under section 139 of the Companies Act,
2013 from M/s. Purshottam Khandelwal & Co. that their appointment, if made, would be in
conformity with the limits specified under the Act. The Report given by the Auditors on the
financial statements of the Company is part of the Annual Report. The notes to the accounts
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referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any
further comments.

There has been no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the
Auditors in their Report.

B. Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed Mr.
GautamVirsadiya, Practicing Company Secretary Ahmedabad to undertake the Secretarial
Audit of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as Annexure IV

There is no qualification, reservation or adverse remark in the report.
C. Internal Auditors:

The Board of Directors has appointed M/s. Anant Rathod & Associates, Chartered
Accountant as Internal Auditors of the Company.

23. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND COMPLIANCE
FRAMEWORK:

The Company has an Internal Financial Control System, commensurate with size, scale and
complexity of its operations. The internal financial controls are adequate and are operating
effectively so as to ensure orderly and efficient conduct of business operations. The Company
has appointed M/s. Anant Rathod & Associates, Chartered Accountant (FRN 148524W) as
an Internal Auditors of the Company. The Audit Committee in consultation with the internal
auditors formulates the scope, functioning, periodicity and methodology for conducting the
internal audit. The internal auditors carry out audit, covering inter alia, monitoring and
evaluating the efficiency & adequacy of internal control systems in the Company, its
compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations and
submit their periodical internal audit reports to the Audit Committee. Based on the internal
audit report and review by the Audit committee, process owners undertake necessary actions
in their respective areas. The internal auditors have expressed that the internal control system
in the Company is robust and effective. The Board has also put in place requisite legal
compliance framework to ensure compliance of all the applicable laws and that such systems
are adequate and operating effectively.
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24. RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Company has developed and implemented a risk management policy which identifies
major risks which may threaten the existence of the Company. The same has also been
adopted by your Board and is also subject to its review from time to time. Risk mitigation
process and measures have been also formulated and clearly spelled out in the said policy.

25. VIGIL MECHANISM AND WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

In accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Company has constituted a Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism
to establish a vigil mechanism for the directors and employees to report genuine concerns in
such manner as may be prescribed and to report to the management instances of unethical
behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct.

26. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the
requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act 2013. Internal Complaints Prohibition Complaints Committee
(ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All
employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

27. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING:

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view
to regulate trading in securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company.
The Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the
purchase or sale of Company shares by the Directors and the designated employees while in
possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company and during
the period when the Trading Window is closed. The Board is responsible for implementation
of the Code. All Board Directors and the designated employees have confirmed compliance
with the Code.

28. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
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In accordance with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and to the best of their
knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them,
your Directors state that-

1. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

ii. The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year 31st March, 2019
and of the profit and loss of the company for that period,;

iii. The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Rules
made thereunder for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

1v. The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

v. The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

vi. The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

29. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

As a good governance practice a detailed report on Corporate Governance is given as a part
of the Annual Report. The Certificate of the non-applicability of submission of Report on
Corporate Governance is attached to the Report on Corporate Governance. Report on
Corporate Governance is given elsewhere in this Annual Report, herewith attached as
ANNEXUREYV.

30. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE - NON-APPLICABILITY:
The Certificate of the non-applicability of submission of Report on Corporate Governance as
stipulated in Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is appended to the report on Corporate Governance,
herewith attached as Annexure VI.

31. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:
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The Company is not covered under section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 hence details
regarding policy on Corporate Social Responsibility is not applicable to the Company.

32. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

General Shareholder Information is given in Report on Corporate Governance forming part
of the Annual Report.

33. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Directors take this opportunity to express their gratitude for the unstinted commitment,
dedication, hard work and significant contribution made by employees at all levels in ensuring
sustained growth of the Company. Your Directors also sincerely thank to all the stakeholders,
customers, vendors, bankers, business associates, government, other statutory bodies and
look forward to their continued assistance, co-operation and support.

Date: 14/11/2019 For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Place: Ahmedabad ECS Biztech Limited

Vijay MansinhbhaiMandora
Managing Director
DIN: 00328792
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ANNEXURE -1 TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT

2018-19 2017-18
Foreign Exchange Outgoing Nil Nil
Foreign Exchange Earning Nil Nil

Date: 14/11/2019
Place: Ahmedabad
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ANNEXURE —II TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2019
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1 CIN L30007GJ2010PLC063070
il Registration Date 29-11-2010
il Name of the Company ECS BIZTECH LIMITED

v

Category/Sub-category of the
Company

Company limited by Shares

Address of the Registered office
& contact details

ECS HOUSE,12, GARDEN VIEW, OPP AUDA
GARDEN, PAKWAN CIRCLE, SINDHU
BHAVAN ROAD,OFF SG
HIGHWAY,BODAKDEV AHMEDABAD, Gujarat-
380059

Email: secreatrial@ecscorporation.com
Phn No +91 8980005003
vi Whether listed company Yes

vii

Name , Address & contact details of

the Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

Name PURVA SHAREGISTRY (INDIA) PVT. LTD
Shiv Shakti Industrial Estates, Unit No. 9,J. R.
Boricha Marg, Opp. Kasturba Hospital Lane,
Lower Parel (E), Mumbai, Maharashtra 400011
Address
Email: busicomp@yvsnl.com
Phn No +91 22 2301 6761

II

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

SL No Name & Description of main NIC Code of % to total turnover
products/services the of the company
Product
/service
Data Centre- Cloud Services and other
1 related services 631 100
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PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:NIL

SHAREHOLDING PATERN

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of
the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

%
change
during

the year

Demat

Physic
al

Total

% of
Total
Share

Demat

Phy.

Total

% of
Total
Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a)
Individual/HUF

12740288

12740288

61.98

12740288

12740288

61.98

b) Central Govt.or
State Govt.

¢) Bodies
Corporates

d) Bank/FI

e) Any other

2664110

2664110

12.96

2664110

2664110

12.96

SUB TOTAL:(A)
@

15404398

15404398

74.94

15404398

15404398

74.94

(2) Foreign

a) NRI-
Individuals

b) Other
Individuals

¢) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks/FI

e) Any other...

SUB TOTAL (A)
2

Total
Shareholding of
Promoter

(A)=
(A)D)+(A)2)

15404398

15404398

74.94

15404398

15404398

74.94
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(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks/FI

253

253

253

253

C) Cenntralgovt

d) State Govt.

e) Venture Capital
Fund

f) Insurance
Companies

g) FIIS

h) Foreign
Venture
Capital Funds

1) Others (specify)

SUB TOTAL
B)(1):

253

253

253

253

(2) Non
Institutions

a) Bodies
corporates

1) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

1) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal

share capital upto
Rs.2 lakhs

2390060

438577

2828637

13.76

523639

438577

962216

4.68

9.08

ii) Individuals
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs. 2
lakhs

1001625

1001625

4.87

1913504

1913504

9.31

4.44

¢) Others (specify)

NRI

23000

23000

0.11

5850

5850

0.08

0.03

HUF

36672

o

36672

0.18

51489

51489

0.25

0.07

Clearing House

53370

53370

0.26

38819

38819

0.19

0.07

Annual Report 2018-19




»

ECS

Body Corporate 841248 7194 848442 | 4.13| 2171010 7309 | 2178318 10.6 3.67
LLP 358650 0 358650 | 1.74 0 0 0 0 0
SUB TOTAL
B)2):
Total Public
Shareholding
B)= B)(1)+(B)(2) 4704625 | 446024 | 5150649 | 25.06 | 4704310 446139 | 5150449 | 25.06 0
C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total
(A+B+C) 20109023 | 446024 | 20555047 100 | 20108908 446139 | 20555047 100 0
(i1) SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS
S1 No. | Shareholders Name Shareholding at the Shareholding at the % change
beginning of the year end of the year in share
holding
during
the year
No of % of % of NO of % of % of
shares total shares shares total shares
shares pledged shares | pledged
of the of the
company compa
ny
1 Vijay Mandora 12575390 61.18 0| 12575390 | 61.18 0 0
2 SeemaMandora 500 0.00 0 500 0.00 0 0
3 MandoraFinserveP.Ltd. 1143410 5.56 0 1143410 5.56 0 0
4 Laurels Management P.Ltd. 1520700 7.40 0 1520700 7.40 0 0
5 SachiChirag Patel 2898 0.01 0 2898 0.01 0 0
6 Milin N. Shah 68650 0.33 0 68650 0.33 0 0
7 BharatkumarDoshi 5000 0.02 0 5000 0.02 0 0
8 Bhumija Patel 17500 0.09 0 17500 0.09 0 0
9 Shilpa D Doshi 12500 0.06 0 12500 0.06 0 0
10 NInaMilind Shah 7850 0.04 0 7850 0.04 0 0
11 BharatkumarDoshi (HUF) 45000 0.22 0 45000 0.22 0 0
12 Dharmeshbhai Shah 5000 0.02 0 5000 0.02 0 0
Total 15404398 74.94 0| 15404398 | 74.94 0 0
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(i) ISNO CHANGE)
Sl. Shareholding at the Cumulative
No. beginning of the Shareholding during
Year the year
No. of % of No of % of
Shares total shares total
shares of shares of
the the
company company
At the beginning of the
year 15404398 74.94 | 15404598 74.94
Date wise
increase/decrease in
Promoters Share holding
during the year specifying
the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/s
weat equity etc) 0 0 0 0
At the end of the year 15404398 74.94 | 15404398 74.94
Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters &
(iv)  Holders of GDRs & ADRs)
Sl. No Shareholding at the Cumulative
begning of the year Shareholding during
the year
Name No.of % of No of % of total
shares total shares shares of
shares of the
the company
company
MIDRINA OIL AND
1 GAS SERVICES PVT. L 357650 1.74 357650 1.74
SURYAJA
INFRASTRUCTURE
2 PVT. LTD. 357650 1.74 357650 1.74
TIW SYSTEMS PVT.
3 LTD 217650 1.06 217650 1.06
4 SURESH GADALEY 150000 0.73 150000 0.73
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RESOURCES &
5 MANAGEM 121900 0.59 121900 0.59
6 NEERJA CHAWLA 106211 0.52 106211 0.52
7 SAYAR LUNIA 87255 0.42 87255 0.42
8 KAMAL GADALAY 60226 0.29 60226 0.29
OM PRAKASH
9 MANGAL 60000 0.29 60000 0.29
CHANAKYAPRAKASH
10 MANGAL 50050 0.24 50050 0.24
) Shareholding of Directors & KMP
SI. No Shareholding at the Cumulative
end of the year Shareholding during
the year
For Each of the Directors No.of % of No of % of
& KMP shares total shares total
shares of shares of
the the
company company
At the beginning of the
year 12575390 61.18 | 12575390 61.18
Date wise
increase/decrease in
Promoters Shareholding
during the year specifying
the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/s
weat equity etc) 0 0 0 0.00
At the end of the year 12575390 61.18 | 12575390 61.18
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Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans | Unsecured | Deposi Total
excluding Loans ts Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtness at the beginning of the financial year
1) Principal Amount 74,70,98,532 | 1,35,64,780 0| 76,06,63,312
i1) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
ii1) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0
Total (i+ii+iii) 74,70,98,532 | 1,35,64,780 0| 76,06,63,312

0
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

0
Additions 0 47,80,419 0
Reduction 34,28,14,648 0 0
Net Change 0 0 0 33,80,34,229
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

0
1) Principal Amount 40,42,83,884 | 1,83,45,199 0| 42,26,29,083
i1) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
ii1) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0
Total (i+ii+iii) 40,42,83,884 | 1,83,45,199 0| 42,26,29,083
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager: NIL

Remuneration to other directors: NIL

Remuneration to KMP:

S1.No Particulars of Remuneration Designation of the KMP
Gross salary CS CFO
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of
the Income Tax. 1961.
4,36,972 0
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income tax Act,
1961 0 0
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the
Income Tax Act, 196 0 0
Stock option 0 0
3 Sweat Equity 0 0
Commission 0 0
Total (A) 4,36,972 0
vii PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES : NIL
Date: 14/11/2019 For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Place: Ahmedabad ECS Biztech Limited

HardikMandora
Director
DIN: 07090358
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ANNEXURE-IITI TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT

1. Details pertaining to remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the Median Remuneration of the
Employees of the Company for the Financial Year 2018-19 and
ii. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the Financial Year

(Rs. In Lacs)

Sr. No | Name of Director/KMP and its Percentage increase / Ratio of
Designation decrease in Remuneration
remuneration in the of each Director
Financial Year 2018-19 | to the Median
Remuneration of
Employees
1 Mr. Vijay Mandora Nil Nil
(Managing Director)
2 Mr.Hardik Mandora Nil Nil
(Director)
3 Mrs.HinabenThakor Nil Nil
(Independent Director)
4. Mr.Yogendra Makwana Nil Nil
(Independent Director)
5 Ms.Shailika Soni NIl NA
(Company Secretary)
6 Mr.DvijeshPandit NIL NA
(CFO)
1i1. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company is for the

year ended 31st March, 2019.

1v. Overall increase in remuneration is in line with the performance of the Company.

v. Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last Financial Year was 10%.

Average percentage increase made in the salary of the managerial personnel in the last
Financial Year—N.A.

The increase in remuneration is determined based on the performance by the employees of
the Company.

v. Variable component in remuneration of Directors of the Company—N.A.
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vi. The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are
not directors but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year—
N.A.
vii. Affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company—
N.A.

2. There were no employees covered under rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration) Rules, 2014

Date: 14/11/2019 For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Place: Ahmedabad ECS Biztech Limited
HardikMandora Vijay Mansinhbhai Mandora
Director Managing Director
DIN: 07090358 DIN: 00328792
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ANNEXURE -1V TO THE DIRCTORS REPORT

Form No. MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH, 2019
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no. 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

ECS BIZTECH LIMITED,

(CIN- L30007GJ2010PLC063070)

ECS House, 12, Garden View,

OppAuda Garden, Pakwan Circle,
SindhuBhavan Road, Off SG Highway,
Bodakdev, Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380059, India.

I, have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by ECS Biztech Limited (hereinafter called the
“Company”). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts or statutory compliances and
expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of the
Secretarial Audit, I, hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the
audit period covering the financial year ended 31* March, 2019 complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder, wherever and to the extent applicable, and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
(except the provisional or unaudited financial statements for the above mentioned
period) maintained by the Company for the above said financial year ended on March
31%, 2019, according to the provisions of:
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CORPORATE LAWS

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under and the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956;
2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made there under;
3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;
4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made hereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) ;
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008;
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;
d.The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
DisclosureRequirements) Regulations, 2009;
e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;
f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;
g.The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993;
h.The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009 (Not Applicable);
1. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998;
j.The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; and

I have also examined the applicable compliances with the applicable clauses of the following:

1)The Listing Agreement, entered into by theCompany with the National Stock Exchange
and Bombay Stock Exchange (“Stock Exchanges”) with respect to Equity Shares listed
on the Stock Exchange.

2) The Secretarial Standards I and II, as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of

India.

3) The Memorandum and Articles ofAssociation of the Company.
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I further report that The Board of Directors ofthe Company is duly constituted with proper
balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

Thechanges in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period
under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarificationson the agenda items before the meeting and
for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision 1s carried through while thedissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Date —14/11/2019 For, GKV & Associates
Place — Ahmedabad
PCS Gautam Virsadiya,

Certificate of Practice No.: 19866
Membership No.: 31820
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ANNEXURE V —TO THE DIRECTOR REPORT

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMPANY'’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company adheres to good practices in Corporate Governance in its true spirit and
benchmarks it with high standards. Corporate Governance is set of systems and practices to
ensure that the operations of the Company are being managed in a way which ensures
fairness, integrity, transparency and accountability in its dealings with its customers,
stakeholders, dealers, lenders, government and employees. Company has guiding principles
laid out through its Code of business conduct, duly adopted by directors and senior
management personnel which have been posted on website of Company
(www.ecsbiztech.com).

1. ETHICS/GOVERNANCE POLICIES:

At ECS Biztech Limited, we strive to conduct our business and strengthen our relationships
in a manner that is dignified, distinctive and responsible. We adhere to ethical standards to
ensure integrity, transparency, independence and accountability in dealing with all
stakeholders. Therefore, we have adopted various codes and policies to carry out our duties
in an ethical manner. Some of these codes and policies are:

e Code of Conduct

e Vigil Mechanism

e Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and on Dealing with Related Party

Transactions
e Board Performance Evaluation Policy
e Familiarization of Independent Directors Policy

e Policy for Selection of Directors and determining Directors Independence

e Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
Composition of the Board of Directors

The Company’s policy is to maintain optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive
Directors Pursuant Regulation 17 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
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Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The composition of the Board
and category of Directors are as follows:

Executive Director Mr. Vijay Mandora, Promoter Director

Non-Executive Mr.HardikMandora, Non-Executive Director
Mr.YogendraMakwana, Non-Executive Independent Director
Mrs.HinabenThakor, Non-Executive Independent Director

Number of Board Meetings and Attendance of Directors:

During the financial year 2018-19, 5 (Five) Board Meetings were held on30/05/2018,
31/07/2018, 30/10/2018, 05/09/2018 and 25/01/2019. The Board meeting dates are
finalized in consultation with all the directors and agenda papers with detailed notes and other
background information, which are essential for the Board to effectively and reasonably
perform their duties and functions, are circulated well in advance before the meeting thereby
enabling the Board to take informed decisions. The composition of Directors and the
attendance at the Board Meeting during the year 2018-19 and last Annual General Meeting
are as under:

Name of | Category No. of Membership of | No. of | Attendance
Director Directorships | Board Committees Board at last
in other Meetings | AGM
Companies Attended
Chairman | Member
Mr. Vijay | Director 3 0 1 5 Yes
Mandora
Mr.HardikM | Director 3 1 2 5 Yes
andora
Mr.Yogendra | Independen | Nil 1 3 5 Yes
Makwana t Director
Mrs.Hinaben | Independen | Nil 1 3 5 Yes
Thakor t Director

3. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

The Annual General Meeting for the financial year ended on 31* March, 2018 was held on
29" September, 2018.
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4. BOARD COMMITTEES:

As per the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules and the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations,
2015, various Board committees have been formed for better governance and accountability
viz. Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee. The terms of reference of each committee are determined by the
Board as per the requirement of law and their relevance is reviewed from time to time.

A. AUDIT COMMITTEE:

As a measure of good Corporate Governance and to provide assistance to the Board of
Directors in fulfilling the Board’s responsibilities, an Audit Committee had been constituted
by the Board. The terms of reference of this committee covers matters specified under
Regulation 18 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
other matters referred by the Board from time to time. Committee lays emphasis on adequate
disclosures and compliance with all relevant statues.

Main areas are deliberated as under.

a. To provide an open avenue of communication between the independent auditors, internal
auditors and the Board of Directors (BOD).

b. To oversee the work of the independent auditors for the purpose of preparing or issuing an
audit report or related work.

c. Relying on the review and discussions with the management and the independent auditor,
the Audit Committee believes that the Company’s financial statements are fairly presented in
conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in all material aspects.

d. To consider and review the adequacy of internal control including computerized
information system controls and inform periodically to the Board of Directors on significant
activities.

The Constitution of the committee and the attendance of each member of the committee is
given below:

The Committee comprises of three Directors. All members of the Audit Committee are
financially literate. In the financial year 2018-19, four meetings were held on 30/05/2018,
31/07/2018, 30/10/2018 and 25/01/2019. Composition of committee as on 31* March,
2018 and member’s attendance at the meetings during the year are as under:
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Name Designation Category

Mr.YogendraMakwana Chairperson Non-Executive -
Independent Director

Mr. Vijay Mandora Member Executive Director

Mrs.HinabenThakor Member Non-Executive -

Independent Director

Attendance of each member of the committee:

Committee Members Meetings held Meetings attended
Mr.YogendraMakwana 4 4
Mr. Vijay Mandora 4 4
Mrs.HinabenThakor 4 4

B. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

Terms of reference of the committee comprise various matters provided under Regulation 19
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other
matters referred by the Board from time to time. The Committee comprises of three Directors.
The Constitution of the committee and the attendance of each member of the committee is

given below:
Name Designation Category
Mrs.HinabenThakor Chairperson Non-Executive -
Independent Director
Mr.YogendraMakwana Member Non-Executive -
Independent Director
Mr.HardikMandora Member Non-Executive Director

Attendance of each member of the committee:

Committee Members Meetings held Meetings attended
Mrs.HinabenThakor 1 1
Mr.YogendraMakwana 1 1
Mr.HardikMandora 1 1
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Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee performs various functions provided under Regulation
20 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Name Designation Category
Mr.HardikMandora Chairperson Non-Executive Director
Mr.YogendraMakwana Member Non-Executive -
Independent Director
Mrs.HinabenThakor Member Non-Executive -
Independent Director

Attendance of each member of the committee:

Committee Members Meetings held Meetings attended
Mr.HardikMandora 1 1
Mr.YogendraMakwana 1 1
Mrs.HinabenThakor 1 1

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee has been constituted to administer the following

activities:

Change of Status
Change of Name

SR P @ Ao o

Transfer of shares
Transmission of shares
Issue of Duplicate Share Certificates

Transposition of Shares
Sub-Division of Share Certificates
Consolidation of folios
Shareholders’ requests for Dematerialization of shares
Shareholder’ requests for Rematerialization of shares

The Committee meets from time to time and approves the transfer and transmission of
shares, deletion of names, issue of duplicate share certificates etc. The Committee
facilitates prompt and effective redressal of investors' complaints and the reporting of the
same to the Board of Directors.
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The Board has delegated the power of Share Transfer to Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent, PurvaSharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd, who processes the transfers.

e No. of shareholders’ complaints received —NIL.

e No. of shareholders’ complaints resolved - NIL.

e No. of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders -- NIL.
e No. of pending share transfers -- NIL.

e Asat 31% March, 2019 no equity Shares were pending for transfer.

5. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME:

As per requirements under the Listing Agreement read with the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, the
Company undertook familiarization Programme for Independent Directors in order to
familiarize them with business model, management structure, product portfolio, Industry
overview, manufacturing operations, internal control system and processes, FOREX
management, risk management framework, functioning of various divisions, HR
Management etc. The policy on familiarization Programme for Independent Directors has
been uploaded on the Company’s website at the following link
http://ecsbiztech.com/policy2.php

6. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING:

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for fair disclosure and prevention of Insider
Trading in order to regulate, monitor and control trading in securities by the Directors and
designated employees of the Company. The Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the
Company shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by the Directors
and the designated employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive
information in relation to the Company and during the period when the Trading Window
1s closed.

7. SUBSIDIARY COMPANY:
No Subsidiary Company.

8. POSTAL BALLOT AND E-VOTING:

During the year, the Company had not sought approval from the shareholders through
Postal Ballot. The Company was not required to provide e-voting facility during the year.
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9. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS AND EXTRA ORDINARY GENERAL

MEETING:

Details of last three AGMs held-

Year

Date

Time

Venue

No. of
Special
Resolutions
passed

2015-16

14/05/2016

11:00 AM

Block-I, SafalMondel Park, Nr.
Iscon Mall, Nr. Raj Path Club,
Nr. Rangoli Farm, S.G.
Highway, Bodakdev,
Ahmedabad 380054

4

2016-17

29/09/2017

05:00 PM

ECS House 12, Garden View,
OppAuda garden, Pakwan
Circle, Sindhubhavan Road, off
SG Gighway, Boadakdev,
Ahmedabad

2017-18

29/09/2018

05:00 PM

ECS House 12, Garden View,
OppAuda garden, Pakwan
Circle, Sindhubhavan Road, off
SG Gighway, Boadakdev,
Ahmedabad

No Resolutions were put through postal ballot.

Resolutions were passed on show of hands at the Annual General Meetings for the all
financial years except 2016-17 and 2017-18. In the FY 2016-17 and 2017-18 e-voting
facility had been provided to the shareholders.

During the year, No Extra Ordinary General Meeting was held.

10. DEMAT / REMAT OF SHARES

Details of Shares Dematerialized / Rematerialized during the last financial year is as

below:

a) Number of Demat requests approved: 02
b) Number of Shares Dematerialized: 1155

d) Number of Remat requests approved: Nil
e) Number of Shares Remitted Nil
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Representatives of the Company are constantly in touch with M/s. PurvaSharegistry
(India) Pvt. Ltd., Share Transfer Agents of the Company and review periodically the
outstanding matters.

11. SHAREHOLDING OF NON-EXECUTIVE NON-PROMOTER DIRECTORS
No Non-Executive Non Promoter Director holds shares in the Company.

12. DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN DIRECTORS INTER-SE
No Director of the Company is related to any other Director.

13. DISCLOSURES:

A. There are no materially significant related party transactions that may have potential
conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

B. There were no instances of non-compliance nor have any penalties/strictures imposed
by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory authority on any matters related to
capital market, during last financial years.

C. Whistle Blower Policy

In terms of Regulation 22 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, the Company has established vigil
mechanism for directors, employees and other stakeholders to report concerns about
unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s code of
conduct or ethical policy.

D. The Company has also adopted policy on dealing with related party transactions.

E. Details of Compliance with Mandatory requirements and adoption of Non-mandatory
requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015.

Mandatory requirements:

The Company complies with all the mandatory requirements of Securities and Exchange

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, with
regard to corporate governance.
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Non-Mandatory requirements:

a) Office for non-executive Director at company’s expense: Yes

b) Half-yearly declaration of financial performance to each household of shareholders:
Not complied

¢) Audit Qualifications: Complied as there are no audit qualifications

d) Separate posts of Chairman and CEO: Chairman and Managing Director are same

e) Reporting of Internal Auditors directly to Audit Committee: Complied

F. CEO certification:

The Director of the Company has certified to the Board with regard to the compliance
made by them in terms of Regulation 17(8) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and the certificate
forms part of Annual Report.

G. Accounting treatment

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the
Accounting Standards notified under the Act. The financial statements have been
prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention.

14. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

Board of Directors approves and takes on record Unaudited Quarterly Results and
Audited Annual Results in the prescribed form and announces forthwith the results and
intimate to the Bombay Stock Exchanges Ltd. where the Company’s shares are listed.
The results are also published in two newspapers, one in English and the other in
Regional Language.

15. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION TO SHAREHOLDERS
a. Annual General Meeting:

Date: 16™ December, 2019
Time: 05:00 p.m.

Annual Report 2018-19



ECS

Address: ECS House, 12, Garden View, OppAuda Garden, Pakwan Circle,
SindhuBhavan Road, Off SG Highway, Bodakdev, Ahmedabad 380059

b. Calendar of Financial Year ended 31* March, 2019
The meetings of Board of Directors for approval of quarterly financial results during the
Financial Year ended 31* March, 2019 were held on the following dates:

First Quarter Results: 31*July, 2018

Second Quarter and Half yearly Results: 30"October, 2018
Third Quarter Results: 25" January, 2019

Fourth Quarter and Annual Results: 2™ May, 2019

c. Tentative Calendar for financial year ending 31* March, 2020

Unaudited Results for the quarter ended 30/06/2019- Last Week of July, 2019
Unaudited Results for the quarter ended 30/09/2019 - Last Week of October, 2019
Unaudited Results for the last quarter ended 31/12/2019 - Last Week of January 2020
Audited Results for the quarter ended 31/03/2020 - Fourth Week of May 2020
Annual General Meeting for the year ending 31* March, 2020 - September 30, 2020

d. Date of Book Closure
Tuesday, 10™ December, 2019 for Annual General Meeting.

e. Regd. Office
ECS House, 12, Garden View, OppAuda Garden, Pakwan Circle, SindhuBhavan Road,
Off Sg Highway, Bodakdev, Ahmedabad 380059

f. Equity shares of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange situated at P. J.
Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai-400001.

g. Scrip Code: - 540063 (BSE), Scrip ID: ECS, ISIN: INE925Q01024

h. Market price data of the equity shares of the company (BSE Portal)

Month High(Rs.) Low(Rs.) Closing(Rs.) Volume
(No of Shares)
April, 2018 8.28 3.94 3.94 126061
May, 2018 3.87 3.15 3.47 270169
June, 2018 4.16 3.41 4.10 172785
July, 2018 4.15 3.15 3.15 136852
August, 2018 3.90 3.09 3.80 83858
September, 2018 5.03 3.73 5.03 135931
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October, 2018 6.55 4.50 5.28 81860
November, 2018 5.50 3.82 4.10 22282
December, 2018 4.10 3.25 3.50 46902
January, 2019 3.53 2.71 3.00 71618
February, 2019 3.00 2.43 2.85 49596
March, 2019 3.20 2.88 3.15 32908

i. Share Transfer System

Applications for transfer of shares held in physical form are received at the office of the
Registrars and Share Transfer Agents of the Company, PurvaSharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd.
All valid transfers are processed within prescribed time from the date of receipt

k. Shareholding pattern as on 31-03-2019 is as given below:

Category No of Shareholder No of Equity | % of Equity
Shares held Shareholding
A. Promoter & promoter group shareholding
Individual & HUF 10 12740288 61.98
Body Corporates 2 2664110 12.96
B. Public Shareholding
Body Corporates 80 848442 4.13
LLP 2 358650 1.74
Financial Institutes 1 253 0
Resident Individual 9821 3830262 18.63
HUF 46 36672 0.18
NRI 10 23000 0.11
Clearing Members 19 53370 0.26
1. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2019 is as under:
No of Equity | Number of|% of Total | In.Rs % of Total
Shares Held Shares Shares Rupees
holders holders
Upto 5,000 8932 89.39 8800030 4.28
5,001-10,000 540 5.40 4636260 2.26
10,001-20,000 243 2.43 3732030 1.82
20,001-30,000 89 0.89 2265370 1.10
30,001-40,000 33 0.33 1164570 0.57
40,001-50,000 41 0.41 1964920 0.96
50,001-1,00,000 55 0.55 4347060 2.11
1,00,001 and above | 59 0.59 178640230 86.91
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| Total | 9992 | 100 [ 205550470 | 100 |

m. Dematerialization of Shares and liquidity
The shares of the company are permitted for demat on NSDL and CDSL
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital as on March 31, 2019: 20555047
A. Electronic Holding in NSDL: 14867575
B. Electronic Holding in CDSL: 5241448
C. Physical Holding: 446024

M. Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or Conversion instruments, Conversion date
and like impact on equity- Not applicable

n. Investors’ correspondence:
For transfer / dematerialization of shares, Change of Address, Change in Status of investors,
payment of dividend on shares and other query relating to the shares of the Company:

PURVA SHAREGISTRY (INDIA) PVT. LTD.
(Unit: ECS Biztech Limited)

Shiv Shakti Industrial Estates, Unit No. 9,

J. R. Boricha Marg, Opp. Kasturba Hospital Lane,
Lower Parel (E), Mumbai — 400 011.

O. Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company: Ms. Shailika Soni
(Note- Ms. Shailika Soni Resign with effect from 23.07.2019 and the company appoint new

Company Secretary and compliance office of the company as earliest)

p- There are no shares lying in the demat suspense account or unclaimed suspense account.

Date: 14/11/2019 For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Place: Ahmedabad ECS Biztech Limited
HardikMandora Vijay Mansinhbhai Mandora
Director Managing Director
DIN: 07090358 DIN: 00328792

Annual Report 2018-19


http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do

ECS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

Corporate Identity No: L30007GJ2010PLC063070
Nominal Capital: 40 (Forty) Crores

To the Members of
ECS BIZTECH LIMITED

I have examined all the relevant records of ECS BIZTECH LIMITED for the purpose of
certifying compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance under the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the financial
year ended March 31%, 2018. I have obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of my knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of
certification.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the
Management. My examination was limited to the procedure and implementation process
adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the corporate
governance.

This certificate 1s neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations and
information furnished to me, I certify that the Company has complied with all the mandatory
requirements of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Schedule II of the said SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. As regards Discretionary
Requirements specified in Part E of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has complied with items C, D
and E.

Date — 14/11/2019 For, GKV & Associates

Place — Ahmedabad
PCS, Gautam Virsadiya
Certificate of Practice No.: 19866
Membership No.: 31820
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DECLARATION

All Board Members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the
code of conduct of Directors and Senior Management as approved by the Board.

Date: 14/11/2019 For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Place: Ahmedabad ECS Biztech Limited
HardikMandora Vijay Mansinhbhai Mandora
Director Managing Director
DIN: 07090358 DIN: 00328792
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CEO CERTIFICATION
To,
The Board of Directors,
ECS BIZTECH LIMITED
Ahmedabad.

We hereby certify that:

1. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of the Financial
Year 2018-19 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief.

a. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact
or contain statements that might be misleading;

b. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

ii. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violated of the Company's code of
conduct.

1ii. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that we
have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company and we
hereby disclose to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that there have been no
inefficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, prevailing in the company.

iv. We hereby certify that :

a. There have been no significant changes in internal control during the year.

b. There have been no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and

c¢. No instances of fraud were observed in the Company by the management or an employee
having a significant role in the company's internal control system.

Date: 14/11/2019 For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Place: Ahmedabad ECS Biztech Limited

Vijay MansinhbhaiMandora
Managing Director
DIN: 00328792
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Registered Office
ECS HOUSE, 12 GARDEN VIEW, OPF AUBA GARDEN,
RODAKDEV, AlTMEDABAD-380054
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Kajarekar & Co, 202 & 204, Simandhar Avenue,
Chartered Accountants 8, Kaillash society, Mr. H.K Housa,

Ashram Road, Ahmedabad,
‘-%‘ Gujarat - 3RO0OS
(P} 079-26582 1649

Email - kscal? 3@hotmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of
ECS BIZTECH LIMITED
Ahmedabad,

Report on the Audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ECS BIZTECH LIMITED ["the Company™), which
comprise the balance sheet as at 3t March 2019, and the statement of Profit and Loss, statement ol chanpes in
cquity and statement of cash Aows for the year then ended, and notes to the finoncial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred 1o as
‘financial statements”)

I aur opnbon and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
tinancial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (The Act] in the manner sa
required and give a true and fair view In conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Acconmting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, {*Ind
A5") and ather accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2019, and loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash Nows for the year
ended on that date

Basis for Opinion

We conducted owr audlt In accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specilied under section 143{10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those Standards are urther described in the Auditor's
Hesponsibilities for the Audit of the financial Statements section of aur repmt, We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisiens of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have Tullilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Fthics. We believe that the andit
evidence we have obtained is sulficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our epinkon,

Emphasis of Matter

We refer to note Mo, 25(5) of the financial statement with that the company has net offered any lormal
plans or agreements with individual employees, group of employees or their representatives for
retirement benefits, hence its recognition, measurement and disclosures are not made,

IKey Audlit Matters

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report,
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e Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The ather nfarmation comprises
tre information included in the Board's reportingluding Annexure to Board's Report but does not inchice the
financial statements and our auditers’ repart thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
af assurance conclusion therean.

In connection with our audit of the Anancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information I materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
aur knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. IF based on the work we
have perfarmed, we conclude that there is a materfal misstatement of this ather information; we are recuired
b report that fact. We have nothing to repart in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Drectars is responstble for the matters stated in section 134(5] ofthe Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act") with respect ta the prepavation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash fows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specificd
under section 133 ol the Act. ‘T'his responsibility also includes malntenance of adeguate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
proventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policics; making judgments and estimates that are reasopable and prudent; and design,
implementation and malatenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant io the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view  and arve free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matlers related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting wnless management elther Intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process,
Auditor's Responsibilities fer the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our ohjectives are lo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted In accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Mizstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these linanclal skatements.
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As parl of an audit in accordance with 5As, we excicise professional judgment and naintin professional
skepticism throughout the audit We also;

o ldentify and assess the risks of materdal misstatement of the financial stalements, whether due Lo
fraud or ervor, design and perform audit procediures responsive to those risks, and obtain awdit cvidenre
that is sufficient and appropriate lo provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting 3 material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as (il muy lvalve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overrlde of internal control,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circomstances. Under section 143(3){1) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing sur opinion on whether the company has adequate internal lnancial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of accounting
eslimates and related disclosures made by management

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concerns basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence abtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going conceri. If we conclude that
4 material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
dizclosures in the financial statements or if such disclosures are Inadequate, to modify our opiaion, Qu
conclusions are based on the awdit evidence obtained up to the date of our suditor's report. Howewver,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a EDing concern,

* lvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the fnancial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial slatements represent  the underlyving transactions and events
in & ianner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
w fdentily during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to commuricate with them all relationships and ather
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear an eur independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the awdit of the fnancial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our repart because the adverse consequences of doing 5o would reasonably be expected to
ontweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Repgulatory Requirements

1} As required by the Companies [Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 ["the Order”), Issued by the Centreal
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the Annaxure - A - a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Urder, ta the
extont applicablo

21 As vequired by Section 143[3] of the Act, we report that:

(a1 Woe have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knewledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appoars from our examination of those bools,

{¢] The Balance Sheei, the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including other comprehensive incomel,
Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

[} In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statoments comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Sectlon 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies [Accounts] Rules, 2404

{¢] On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 315 March, 2019 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31% March, 2019 lrom
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2] of the Act.

(] With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B
and

{g) With respect to the other matters to be Included in the Auditor's Repart in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and aceording to the explanations given to us:

(i} 'The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at March 31, 2019 on its
financial position in its Anancial skatements for the year ended March 31, 2019
{ii} The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses,
| | i
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{iii) There were no amounts which wers required to he teansferred o the Invester Edueation  andd
Protection Fund by the Company

For, Kajarelar & Co,
Firm Rogistration No, 137731W
Chartered Accemntants

B
.Lﬂ’\_ﬁ, QAL Ara)
"

Hemant Ri_ Grjarekar
Proprietor
Membership Mo, (41947

Ahmedabad
May 25, 2019
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Annexure A Lo the Independent Auditors Reporl

Referced o in paragraph 1 of the Independent Auditers' Repart of even date to the members of ECS Riztech
Limited on the Ainancial statements for the year eaded March 31,2019

1.

Inrespect of Fixed Assors:

(2] The Company is in the process of maintaining fixed asset register showing il particulars including
guantitative details and situation of fixed assels,

(b) As explained to us, physical verification of major fixed assets has been conducted by the
management at apprapriate intervals. In our opinion, the programime is reasonable having regard to
the sive of the Company and the nature of the fixed assets. According to information and
explanations given to usg, no material discrepancies have been reported.on such verification

(e} According ta the information and explanations given to ns and oe Lthe basis of pur examination of the
vecords of the Campany, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name al the
Campany.

In respect of Inyentories:

In our opinlon, the inventaries have heen physically verified during the year by the management at
reasonable intervals and as explained to us no material discrepancies were noticed on physical
verification,

In respect of Loan to parties covered in the register maintained under Sec.189:

The Company has not granted any unsecured loans to companies, Hrms and ather parties covered in the
Register maintained u/s 189 of the Act, hence the provision of clause (iif] [a], (k) and {c) of paragraph 3
of the Order are not applicable.

Inrespect of Loans, investments, guarantees complied with section 185 & 186;

In cur opinion and according to the information and explanations given Lo us, the Compainy does pol
have any transactions to which the provisions of Section 185 apply. The Campany has camplled with the
provistons of Section 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans, investments, guarantees and security

In respect of deposit from Public
The Company has net accepted deposit from the public within the meaning of 5ec.73 to 76 and other
relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed there uncler.

Inres Alnien : i
According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Gevernment has net prescribed

maintengnce of cost records under sub-section (1) of Sec. 148 of the Companies Act, 20103.

In respect of statutory dues:

(2} According to the records of the Company, the Company is not repular in depositing with appropriate
authorities undisputed statutory dues incleding Provident Fund, Employees State [nsurance, Income
Tax, Value Added Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax and other material statutory dues
applicable to it According to the information and explanations given [0 us, the amounts of
undisputed amounts payahla in respect of the aforesaid dues as outstanding as at 31 March, 2019
for a period of more than six menths from the date of becoming payable ave as under:

ae



Eﬂfﬂfﬁkﬂf & Co, 207 & 204, Simandhar Avenue,
Charvtersd Accountants 8, Kailash Society, Mr. H.K House

Ashram Road, Ahmedabad,
'm Gujaral - 3800049

(P} Org-26%821649
Fmnall « kscal 2 3@hotmall.com

F

Peviod
<t to which _
T T e gfll Ill.uL of the glllmml II;u : ::mte utl'
¥ amot K, ake avmen
relates
TS Defanits Fis s Varlous 714,049 Various ﬂn_t yot
Years Dates paic
Gujarat State Taxes an 201918
Profession,  Traders | Professional | and 353 659 Various | Not et
and  Callings  and | Tax earlier RN Dates | pald
Employmeants Act 1976 yers
Lufarat state Taxes on
Profession, Traders | Professianal Various | Not vt
and  Callings and | Tax SULE-13 | 50,430 [¥ates palil

Emplovments Act 1976

EZIC
ESIC Act, 19248 Employes 2017-1B | 15,744
Contribution

Varions | Mot vel
[ertes paicd '

. 201718 .
EPF Act 1052 |':I'ﬂ'l.fI|3E'Jl'[ & carlier | 0,034 Various Hn_t vl
Fund ates paid
= B L ,
" _ Provident ; ; Various | Not  yet
EPF Act 1952 Fund 2018-1% | 96,935 Db aid

}

(k) According to the records of the Company, there were na disputed statutory dues in respect of sales
tax, wealth tax, customs duty and cess, excise duty which have not been deposited, except the
following particulars of income-tax dues not deposited by the Company on account of dispute as at
March 31, 2019:-

Nature of  the Nature of the | Amount in | Period to which | Forum  where
statue dues s, amount relates | dispute is |
v ymr——— - pending
Income-tax Act Income-tax 0., 384 201213 CPC
L B ufs 220(2) =
Imcome-tax Act Income-tax 13.93400 2012-13 Asgpszing Officer
—Iwfs221(3) 3
Income-tax Act Income-tax 094,168 2016-17 Assessing Dfficer
ufa 271017} ) v

s .,I-
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13.

14.

(P} OFQ- 26582109
Email - kscal 23@Ehealmall.com

In respect of dues to (inaneial institution /banlks /debentures:

Contral Bank of India and State Banle of India hove restru ctired the dues of interest and principal during
the year ended March 31, 2016, According to cxplanation given to us and record examined by us, the
Company has not defaulkked o repayment of dues to financial institutions or banks ar povernment ar
debenture holders as to the Balance Sheet date.

In respect of application of term loans:
The Company has not raised any moneys by way of nitlal public offer, further public offer and ternl
laans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

I respect of frand:
Rased upen the audit procadures perfarmed for the purpose of reporting the true and [air view of the
financial statements and as per the infermation and explanations given by the management, we report

that no fraud on or by the Company have been noticed ar reported during the year,

I vespect of Managerial Remunevation;
According to the information and explanation given to us and the boolds af accounts verified by us, the
managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite approvals

mandated by the provisions of Sectien 197 read with the Schedule ¥ to the Act.

I respect of Nidhi Company:

The company is not a Nidhi Company; hence the provisions of Clause 3(xii} are not applicable to the
Comprany.

I respect of Related Parties Transactions:

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
Financial Statenments as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In Respect of Prefecential Allotment/ Private Placement:
Accarding to the information given to us, during the year the Company has not made any preferential
allotment as private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures, hence the provisions

of clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company.

In respect of Non-cash Transaction:
According to the information and explanation given to us and the books of accounts verified by us, the
company has not entered into any nen-cash transaction with directors or person connected with him.
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Inrespect of section 45:-1A of RBI Act, 1934;
The Company is mot required to be registered under Section 45-14 of the Reseryve Banle of India Act, 1934

For, Kajarekar & Cao,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 13773 1W

'HN‘@.. rt. e

Hemant R 'Kajarelar
Proprictoy
Membership No, 041962

ftimedabad
May 25, 2019
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Annexure B to the ndependont Anditors” Report:
Kelereed 1o in paragraph 2(f] of the Independent Auditars' Report of even date to the members of ECS Bixtech
Limvited on the financial statements for the yoar ended March 31,2009

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clanse (1) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act:

We have audited the internal financial controls over Fnancial reporting of ECS Biztech Limited ("the
Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our awdit of the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls:

The Company's management Is responsible for establishing and malntaining internal financial controls based on
the Internal conteol over financial reporting criteria pstablished by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Cuidance Note on Audit af Internal Financial Contrels Owver
Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Mote'] Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India [ICAL).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, incheding
adhersice 1o company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the provention and detection of frands and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable fnancial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 [the Act).

Auditors’ Responsibility:

Dur responsibility is to express an opinian on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on eur audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on
Aunditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10] of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls; both applicable to an audit of internal financial cantrols and both issued by Che TCAL
Thase Standards and the Guidance Note reguire that we comply with ethical reguirements and plan and
perform the audit to abtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intermal Anancial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
|'F‘,'EFIEETE.

Out audlt lnvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
control system over financial reporting and thelr operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial contrals
over Anancial reperting included obtalning an understanding of internal fnancial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risl. The procedures selected depend on the
auditars’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statemerts,
whether due to frand o error.

We helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial control systam over financial reporting,

A company's internal financial cantrel over financlal reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in aceordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financlal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of reconds
that, in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositinns of the assets of the
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company: [2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary o permit preparation
af financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and thal recelpts and
expenditures of the company are being made ooly in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention o timely dctection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material offect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financlal Reporting:
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over finandal reporting, including the

possibility of eollusion or impraper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may oceur and may not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial conbrols
over inancial reporting to future periods are subjeet to the visk that the internal financial control over flnancial
peparting may hecome inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of campliance with the
palicies or procedures may deleriorate

Opinion:

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adeguats jitteriial financlal control systeinn ove
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as al
WMarch 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the egsential components of inteérnal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India,

FFor, Kajarelar & Co.
Firm Regisiration Mo, 137731W
Cliartered Accountants

& AN
Hemant B Kgjarelsar —
Proprietor |

Membership No. 041962

Ahmedabad
May 25,2019
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Mute® | Share Caplyal
Authorissl
400 RLA00 {4, D00 200 Equity Shares of Re 10 Each 000 D00 W 00,000, 00
QLRI 1, DML IOD
l:;li'-'l-:iﬁ.lﬂﬂ-ufp[lt'.'l'. L05,55047] Equity Shares of Bs. 10 Each 205,550,470 ?PE?E?’}E%
Tatal 205550470 205,550,470
Az 6.1 E:I:;TI:':II;::IN"E“E Huiglar of Sharos Dutsamling Hov ol Sl M ek
Equity Slearas
Shares sutstandivg at the beginming of the year Z0,555047 £0,555,047
Shares autstanding ot the cacd of Lhe year 20,555 047 20,555,047 ||
Nome 9.2 | Dedsils of Shares held by Sharehalders hobding more than 5% of the Aggregate Shares i the Company
Namne of Sharebadtler  Shrl Vijay Mamdaga
Ko, of Shares hald 12,575,390 12,575,390
o Halcling o G110 6110
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NOFIES FORMIEG PART OF FINANGIAL STATEMENT AS AT 315t MARCH, 2019

fRa I : Far the year-ended 3] For the vear ended 51
o e A Il Mareh 2015 March $018
Nole 16 Revemue from (perations - . e
Revenue (rom I Products
Sales of Tracled Goads L LR BT b T |
Reveque (o Sarviees
From local imsret fB21.287 GTRTLRY
rom Inrermational Marbet | Y 1 L6 B, 205
LOAEST4 TAIIBAL
Tl wEITEI0 | AT
Mate 17 Aty Income
Other Nan-(pemnting lconie —— 20,415,299 P e
Total 6,318,209 | AIEENTR
Noto 16 | Funchasps, s
Mirchises of Stock-fn-Trodo 119,320 Lo LNZmER
Y Total _ 1419320 10,112,530
Mot 14 Lhange i lovenicrics
Closing Stock of Seock in Trade. 5.103,083 2 1A A0
Less: Dpening Stock of Steck in Trade 21,500,340 A5, 900 ¥
. Total 16566,357 | 24,230,301
Wode 200 Employee Benefits Exponss
(2] Salarles and Incentives ?131,9M 5422580
(13} Sealt Welbire Bsponses =) TR S |
| Tatal ) 7,131,994 3-522, 200
Mote 21 Fluangcial Expenses -
Interost Bxpenge 411,918 KL WL
Other Borrowing Costs 2.753 31,639
Taotal 4,701 465,934
Nole 22 | Depreciation & Amoxdisation Expenses. '
Deprecatian TA55,512 1092367
Peeliminary Expenses Written OfF = - .
Total TAGEH12 1923674
Mot 23 ;
i) DIRECT EXPENSES
Service Exponscs L4400 y
Iransport & Froiglt hovacd 133.138 241345
Electricity Bxpenscs 1239513 Ha H6]
Monvberslip Fees -
Ripaiins & Maintenance 15800 136,883
Municipal Exponsg
Otlicr Expenges 255,557
Professlonal Tax - .
Profit & Loss of Fixed Assets % -
Toml 1!53 5!'9-1-5 |,51-‘I_J|A
b] OFFICE AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Bgurinee Expensos 15,363 an
Internet & Broadband Expenses 07272 GEE0Y 1
Audit Fees 55,000 32775
Postage & Courler 74306 O, 20
Frofessionad Fees 1352963 1,604,357
Rent, Rares & Tascs T20.0:00 +07, 440
Office Maintenance Expense 168,346 Te3.741
Telephone & Molile Expenses 104,682 R ]
Travelling & Converance Y o *
Vehlcle Exponses - [Z1,945 L1570
Loss on sale of Assets F, 61820
Prior Posiod Expenses 128240
Sundrey Balance Wi B, 05, BB
Miscelbaneonus Expenses 210AEL :
Total 160,626,002 4,662 A6
] SELLING AND DISTRIEUTION EXPEMSES ‘(/
Adveortlsement & Publicity :"_,f; WY " 270,804
Commigzion and Rrolierage Expenses g wioh 1] R i
Tatal e 4 230808
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES {a+h+c) P 162162000 |  6AET91E
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Mobe 25 - Otlier Notea

pote

Plortlcplars

As at 31 Mareh 2019

A ab A1 Murch Z0015E

-

Rekited Parly Disclosures
1. Helativnahips
{a) Sanie Managoement
105 Infotoch PLEA
05 Envkranament Private Linniged
¥ b Infosystom
Mundora Finserve Py Lod
Lawreds Manngement Pkt Lamited
(g} Key Managemient Fersoanel:
Shri Wijay Mandorz
Shil Hardl Mandara
Shrl Dyvdjesh Pasdit
B s Shatlfks Sami v
2. Trangctions Caryimd oot with Helsted ParTios Refereed in 1
Sabave, in Ordinary Course of Basiness
Blatune of Transaeclons Belated Parties
Porchazes
Purchase af §endices
e else of Gongls
Kales
Goads, Matevlals amd Services
Expiises
Iirectors Rernuneration
Bemuneration o KMEP
kot
Transactizns
\ECS Infolech Pl
Vijiry Mandera
1504 Envigenment Private Limitacd
W M Enfosysbom
Mancord Fingerea Pt Lid
[Esdnpes nmbaAnmslivg ab the gl of the year
Yiypsinh Madorn
Bes Brwiranimant Privato Lioited
RCS Infiskech 1.5
WO Infosysiem
Mandora Finserve P, Lud

11251

4306972
Bdfe400

e L3661, 16
Cr 5% 12444
Or 617412

Hil
[r.4,24,000

CrSo1244

Cr 11,23,753

Cr. 6234863

| 14642794
G L1 LG

Im b I!l|]|l1.E:IEI.I.1 of Yhe Baard, 3l assets other than fxod assets aml nan corrent investnbents, lwve o realisable valud in the
ardlinary covrge oFbugingss whicl i sot diffevent from the st at which it i alwted,

Sa5, I

RHE A e
HE 3T

Ifr, 3K BT.34D
il

Cr, 12,06510
Mil

Cr. 1,00

Hil

G 1741105
L. 1,985, 0%
b, 1,66,42,754
Cr, 1,100,306, 1106

Contingent Liabilitles and Commitinents [To the sxent not
providod lor)

[i] Contingent Liabilivies

i} Connler Guarantes given to Bk for LG sutstanding

b thraniees

¢] Claims against tie compadydisputed labiliter net
aclnmeredpel o Debls

(8]} Comumitments

[Ealiveated smrount of contieacts remaining be be executed on capital
accamit and mok provided for

Taotal Contingent Liabillthes

Hil
Hil
Hil

Hil
Hil

Hil
Kil
Ml

Mil
Hil

Aernrding to the Bformation avallabla with the Conspany, there are no amanits a al 31 Warch, 2004, due tosuppliecs whe
cogstitute 3 “Micro, Small and Mediom Enterprises” as pa MESMED Act, 2006,

2

The Company hagnat offered any formal pling or agroements with individual enpleyees, groap plemployees or thet
representatives for retirenient benefits, hence iis recognition, measwrament and disclosures ave 1ot ik
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Note 25(6): significant Accounting Policies & Key Accounting Esthmates

Note 6.1 : Company Overview

ECS Biztech Limited (heremafter referred to as *EDLY or "the Company”) i Compsany formed and registersd
uncler the Companies Act, 1956, an 29ch November, 2010, by the Repistrar of Companies, Gujarat, Dadra and
Magar Havell, The name of the Company has been changed from SAC Infosystem Private Limited to ECS Biztech
Private Limited consequent upon isuue of fresh  Certificate of change of name on dated D812 2001, The
Company is heen converted from Private Limited to Public Limited vide resolution dated 02,/09/2014 The
Company has precured and sold 1T products including Computers and computer peripherals, I addition Lo Ot
the company has rendeced I'T related services during the vear.,

The standalone linancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 were considerod by the Board of
Nirectars and approved for issuance on May 25, 2019

Mote 6.4: Basis of Freparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("lnd AS")
notified under the Companies (Indlan Accounting Stancards) Rules, 2015 and Companies [lndian Accounting
standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, as applicable. Accounting Policles have beon consistently applicd except
where newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or revislon to the existing standards requires o
change in the accounting policy hitherto In use. Management evaluates all recently issued ar revised accounting
standards on an un=going basis.

1 Statement of Compliance

The standalone financial statements comprising Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement ol
Changes L Equily and Cash Flow Statement, together with notes for the year ended March 31, 2019 have
been prepared in accordance with Ind AS as notified under section 133 of the Companies” Act, 2013 “the
Act”) duly approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 25th May, 2019,

2 Basis of Measurement

The standalone financial statements of the Comipany have been prepared and presented in accordance
with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles [GAAP) under the historical cost convention on acerual
basls of accounting, except for cortain Assets and Liabilitics as stated below:

{a})  Financial instruments (assets [ labilities) classified as Fair Value through profit or loss or Fair Value
through Dther Comprehensive lncome are measured at Falr Value.

(k) The defined benefit assetfliability is recognised as the present value of defised benefit obligation
s Fair value of plan assets.

(£)  Assets held for sale measured at fair value less cost to gales

The above (tems have been measured at Fair Value and the methods used to measure Falr Values are
discussed further in Note 6.4{16).

3 Functienal and Presentation Currency

[tems bicluded in the standalone financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of
the primary economic envirenment in which the Company operates (“the functional currency™). Indian
Rupee is the functional currency of the Company. The financial statements ara presented in Indian

Kupees,
4 Standard issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA} Issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
[Amendments) Rules, 2018, (‘the Rules] on March 30, 2019. The rules notify the new Lease Standard
Ind AS 116 'Leases' and also bring in amendments o existing [nd AS. The rules shall be effective from
reporting perlod beginning on or after Aprll 1, 2019 and cannot be reported early. Hence, not applied in
the preparation of these financial statements. The company is in the process of evaluating the impact of
such new or amended standards on the financial statement of the company. However, in the cpinion of
the company, the impact on carrying values of assets and liabilitics will not be significant in value terms.

i_l\_r"“
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Note 6.3: Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of standalone financlal statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management ko imake
Judgments, estimates and assumptions that allect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amints af assets, labilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and contingent liabilities at the date of
standalone financial statements, income and expense during the period, The estimates and associaled
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factars that are considered {o be relevanl. However,
uncertainty shout these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustnent
to the carrying ameount of the asset or lability affected 1o futuree periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recoanized in the peciods in which the estimates are revised and (o future periods which are alfected,

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting pelicies, management hiag made the mlbowing judgments
andl estimates, which have the most significant effect on the amounts vecognised In the standalane financial
statements.

1 Revenme recopmibion

(i} Revenue in respect of domestic sale of products is recognised when the risks and rewards of
ownership are passed on to the customers, which is upon dispatch of products. Sales are stated at
contieactual realizalile values, net of excise duty, sales tax and trade discount.

(i) Esport Sales are recognlized at inveiced valie converted [n to reporting currency by applying the
exchange rate prevailing on transaction date Le. Bill of lading date.

(iii] Export Incontives are accounted for on accrual basis.,

& T'axes

Deferred kg assets are recognised for nnused tox credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable

profit will be available ggainst which the losses can be utllised. Significant management |udgment s

reauired to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits tegether with future tax planning strategies.

3 Employee Benelits

The cost of defined benefit plans are determined using actuarial valuations, The actuarial valuation
involves making assumptiens about discount rates, expected rates of return an asssts, future salary
increases, mortallty rates and future pension increases. Due to the long-term nalure of these plans, such
estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.

4 Fair value measurement of financial Instruments

When the fair values of finaneial assets and financial lisbilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be
measured bascd on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
technlgues. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this
is not feasible, a degree of judgment is reguired [n establishing fair values. Judgments Include trade
receivables, predominantly from Government schemes/insurance companies and corporates which enjoy
high credit ratings are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based en the agelng of the receivable
halance and historical experience. Individual trade receivables are wrilten off when management deems it
fict ta he collectible.

The company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables based on a provision matrix considering the nature of receivables and the risk characteristics.
The considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions
relating to these factors could affect the reported fir value of financial instruments,

5 Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables

Provision matrix takes Into accounts historical credit loss experence and adjusted for forward looking
Information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the day of the receivables are
due and the rates as given in the provision matrix. M

o Impairment of Property, Plant & Equipment
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The valuee in use calculation requires the directors o estimate the future cash Nows expectad toarise from
the cash-generating anit and a suitable discount rate in order to caleulate present value, Where the aclual
future cash fows are less than expected, an Impairment Toss which is material Ty natore (s accounted lor

¥ Litigalions

The provision is recognized based on the hest estimate of the amount desicable o sellle the present
ohligation arising at the peporting period and of the income is recagnized in the cases involving high
depree of cortainty as to realizakion,

Note 6.4 Significant Accounting Policies
T Financial Instroments

Financial assets and financial liabilites are recognised when the Company becomes party o the
contractaal provisions of the instruments.

[a) Financial Asscts

Financial Assets comprizes of investments in equity instruments, trade recelva bles, cash and cash
equivalents and other financizl assers

mittal Recognition:

All financial assets are recognized initially at Falr value plus, in the case of financial assets mot
recorded at [air value through Profit or Loss, transactlon costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets, Purchases or sales of financial assets that requirves delivery of asscts
within a period of time frame established by regulation or eonvention in the market place [regulas
way trades] are recognized on the trade date, Le., the date that the company committed to purchase
orsell the asset.

subsequent Measurement:
(I}  Financial assets measured at amortized Cost:

Financlal assets are subsequently measured at amortised costil these linancial assets are held
within a business whose abjective is to hold these assets in order t collect contractual cash
Rews and where contractual terms of financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash Aows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

(ii] Financial assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FYTOCT):

Financial Assets that are held within a business madel whose objective is achieved by bath
collecting contractual cash fAows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of
financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash fows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount cutstanding are subsequently measured at FVTOCL Fair
Value meovements in financial assets at FYTDC! are recognized in Other Comprehensive
Income.

Equity Instruments held for trading are classified as at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL). For other equity instruments the company classifies the same as FVTOCH The
classification is made an initial recognition and is irrevocable. Fair Value changes on equity
instruments at FYTOCI, excluding dividends are recognized in Other Comprehensive lncome
(QCr).

(iif) Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL):

Financial Assets are measured at FYTPL if it does not meet the criteria for classification as
measured at amortized cost ar at FYTOCL All fair valie changes are cecopnized in the
statement of Profiv and Loss.

De-recognition of Financial Assets:

Finanecial Assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to cash fAows from the finaicial

assets expive or the financial asset Is transferred and the transfer qualifies Mor drr-ruch‘éfn ilrlnn.
On de-recognitien of the flnancial assets in its entirety, the difference between the careying
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()

(c)

(d)

ameunt (measured ab the date of de-recognition) and the consideration received (including
any new assel abtained Jess any new liability assumed) shall be recognized in the Statement
af Prafit and Loss,

Financial Liabilities
Initial Recognition and Measuremont
Financial Liabilities are initially recognized at fair value plus any transaction costs, (iFany) which
are attributalile to acquisition ef the financial liahilities,
Subsequent Measuremaont:
Financial Liabilities are dassified for subsequent measurement inta following categories:
(i) Financlal liabilities at Amortized Cost:
The Company is classifying the following under amortized cost:
Borrgwing from Banls
Borrowing from Others
Trade Payables
Other Financial Liabilities
Amortized cost for Nnanclal liahilities represents amount al which financial liability is
measured at Initial recognition minus the princlpal repayments, plus or minus cumulative

amortization using the effective interest method of any differences between the Initial
amount and maturity amount.

(i) Financial liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

Financial liabilites held for trading are measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
De-pecopnition of Financlal Liabilities:

Financial liabilities shall be derecognized when, and only when, it is extingeished ie. when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Offsetting of Financial assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial assets and Financlal Llabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in Balanee Sheet
when, and only wher, the Company has legal right to offset the vecognized amounts and intends
gither to settle on the nel basis or to realize the assets and liabilities simulaneonsty.

Reclassitication of Financial Assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and linbilities on initial recognition. After
initial recognition, no reclassification s made for Anandal assets which are categorized as equily
instruments at FYTOCL, and financial assets or liabllities that are specifically designated as FYTFL.
For financial asseks which are debt instruments, a reclassilication is made only if there is a change n
business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be very
infirequent, The management determines the change in a business model as a result of external or
internal changes which are significant to the Company's Operations A Change in business occurs
when the company either hegins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to Its operations.
If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively effective
from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period
fallowing the change in business model, Tha Company does not restate any previously recognised
gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

2 Share Capital

Ordinary Shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs divectly attributable to the issue of new
ordinary shares or share options are recognized as a deduction from equity, net ofany tax effects.
3 Property, Plant and Equipment %
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Froperty, plant and equipment held for use in the supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumilatod
impairment losses. Freehold land is not depreciated. All repairs and maintenance eosts are tharged to the
income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred,

Praperties In the course of canstruction for supply of services or administrative purpese are carided al
vost, less any recognised impairment loss, Cost meludles professional fees and other directly attributable
cost and For qualilying assets, borrowing cost capilalised in accordance with the Campany’s accaunting
policy, Such properties are classified to the apprapriate categaries of Froperty Plant and equipmont sehen
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same hasis ag othor e Ly
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended vse,

Deprecialion is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets {other than freehold land and propertics
unider constraction) less their cesidual values over their useful lives as preseribed under Part C ol
schedule [ to the Companies Act 2013, using the straight-line method. The estimated uselul lives, residual
values amd depreciation method are reviewed al the end of cach reporting period, with the affect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on 2 prospective basis. Depreciation for agsets purchased fzold during o
periad is proportionately charged for the period of use.

Bepreciation on Tangible Fixed Assets is provided on straight ling method over the useful lives of assets
specilied in Part G of Schedale | o the Companles Act 2013 read with the relevant notifications lssued by
the Department of Company affairs.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives an the same basis as
owned assets. Leasehold kd with lease term of 99 years ormare and It is amortized over the perind of
lease Le. 99 vears,

An item of property, plant and equipnient is derecognised upon disposal or when no fulure economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arlsing on the disposal
or retivement of an item of property, plant and equipment iz determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised net within "other income f other
exprenses” in the Statement of profit and loss,

4 Intangible assets

Intangible Assets acquired separately

intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately arve carried at cost less accumulated
amartisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-ling basis aver
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortsation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carvied at cost less
accumulated impairment [osses.

Perecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains o losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured ag the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recagnised in
statement of profit and loss when the asset Is de-recognised,

Uselul lives of intangible assets

Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:
Type of Asset Useful Life
Computer softwars 3 years

5 Inventories

(il  Raw Materials, Stock-in-process, Finished Goods are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value,
Cost of stock-in-process and finished goods include materials, labour, manufacturing overhead and
other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location, Excise Liul!r'\ﬁll ods
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mannfactared by the company and remaining ln inventory Is included as a part of valualion ol
finizhed poodds,

(i} Stock of stores, spares, censunable and paclking materials are valoued at cosl,

G lmpairiment

(a) Financial assets fother than at fair value]
The Company assesses at each date of balance sheat, whether a Nnancial asset o a group of financial
assots is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses Lo be measured though o loss
alloveance. The Company recognises Nfetime expected losses for all contract assets and | or 2ll trade
receivables that do nob constilute financing transaction. For all other financlal assets, expocted
credit losses are measurad at an ameunt equal te the twelve-month expected credit losses or at an
amannt equal to the life time expected credit losses §if the eredil risk on the financial asset has
increased significantly, since initial recogniton

(b} Non-financial assets
Tangible and Intangible asscls

Praperty, Plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverahility
whenever there 15 an indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. I any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the Fair value less cost to sell and the value-
in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unloss the asset does not generate cash (ows that
are bpely independent of those from other assets In such cases, the recoverable wmount is
determinad for cash generating anlt {CGL) to which the assel belongs.

Il the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGUY is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the

carrying amount of the asset {or CGUY is reduced te It's recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recoenised in the statement of profit-and loss,

Reversal of impairment loss

Impairment losses recognized in prior perlods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or na longer exists.

An impalrment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount, An Impalrment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying
amounl does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortization, i no lnpalement loss bad been recognized directly in other comprehensive inceme
and presented within equity.

7 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assels

Provisions are recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or conslructive
sbligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the chligation. [f the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
diseounted using a current pre tax rates that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a
finance cost.

A provision for anerous eontract |s recognized when the expected benefits t6 be derived by the Company
fram a contract are lower than the unaveidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract, The
provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contracl
and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract, Before a provision Is established, the Company
recognizes any impalrment lnss on the assets associated with the contract,

GContingent liabilitles are not recognised in the fnandclal statements, A contingent asset s neithe:
recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements,

# Revenue Recognition 'lk/'/
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(&)  Revenwe in respect of domestic sale of products is recognised when the risks and rewards of
ownership are passed on to the customers, which Is upon dispateh of products, Salss ar stated af
contractual realizable values, net of exclse duty, sales tax and trade dizcount

()  ExportSales are recognized at invoiced value converted in o reparting currency by spplying the
exchange rate prevailing on transaction date i.c. Bill of lading date.

{¢]  Exportlncentives are accounted for on aceraal bagis,
(d]  Dividend and Interest Income

Dividend income from investments is recognised whoen the right to recoive payment has been
established {(provided that it is probable that the ecanamic benefits will flow to the Company and
the ameunt of income can be measured retiahly],

Interest income fram @ financial assel is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will ow te the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time hasis, by eference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts eatimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the Mnancial assct to that assel’s net cArCying amount on initial recognition

Uleases

Leases are classified as inance leases whenever the (substantial value of the assets is imitially paid as non-
refundable lease premium) and terms of the lease transfer sulistantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases ave classified as operating leases.

Rental expense from operating leases is generally recognised on a steaight-line basis over the tecm of the
rolevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation
to compensate for the lessor's expected inflatlonary cost increases, such Increases are recognised in the
year In which such benefit accrue. Contingent rentals arising under eperating leases are recopnised as an
expense in the period ln which they are incurrad.

L Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of the Company is the Indian Rupee

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss in the period in
which they arise except for:

(i) exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for
futire productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an
adjustment to Interest costz on those foreign currency borrowings;

(] exchange differences arising from translation of long-term foreign currency monetary items
recognised in the financial statements of the Company for the period immediately bofore the
beginning of the first Ind AS Anancial reporting period (prior to April 1, 2016), as per the previous
GAAF, pursuant to the Company's cholce of availing the exemption as permitted by ind AS 101,

Mon-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are

not retranslated,

[ncome and expense items in foreign currency are translated ay'the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange vates Muctuate signiMcantly turing that period, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used,

11 Borrowing Costs

Hovrowing costs include

(i} interest expense caloulated using the effective interest rate method,

(i} finance charges in respect of fnance leases, and

(i} exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings Lo the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs. i

Bowrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production: of q&ﬁﬁ?'illg

assels, which are assets that necessarily tale a substantial peried of time to get ready for their
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[ntended use ar sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as theo assets are
substantinlly ready for thelr intended use or sale.

literest fneome carned on the temporary investment of specific borvowings pending theis
expenditure on qualifying assets s deducted frem the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation,

All ather Borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and Loss in the pariod in whith

they are lncurred.

12 Employee benefils

(1) Short-term obligations
Liabilities for salaries, Including other menetary and non-monetary benefits that are expected
to 1o settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the peried in which the employoees
render the relnted service are recognised in vespect of empioyees’ services up Lo the end of
the Feporting period and are measured al the amounts expected to be paid when the labilities
are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee henefit obligations in the balance
sheet,

(b} Post-cmployment obligations

The Company operates the following pest-employment schemes: a] defined contribution
plans - provident fund b defined beaefit plans - gratuity plans

{1 Defined contribution plans

The Company has defined contribution plan for the post-employment benefits namely
Provident Fund and Employecs Death Linked Insurance the contributions towards such
funds and schemes are recopnised as employee benefits expense and charged to the
statement of Profit and Loss when they are due. The Company does not carry any
further obligations with respect to this, aparct from contributions made on a monthiy
hasis

(1] Defined benefit plans

The Company has defined benefit plan, namely gratuity for eligible employees in
accordance with the Paymont of Grataity Act, 1972 the lability for which 1s determined
on the basis of an actuarlal valuation {using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the
el of each year.

The present value of the defined benefit phligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the tenor of the related
obligation, The liability or asset recogiized in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity is
the present valie of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less
the fair value of plan assets.

The service cast (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and
losses on curtailments and settlements) s recognised in the Statement of profit and loss
i tha line item ‘Employee benelits expensa’,

Remeasurements of the net defined liahility, comprising of actuarial gains and lesses,
return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability) and any change in the effect of asset ceiling (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit lability), are recognised immediately
in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit er credit to retained earnings through
Othor Compreheasive Income (OC1) in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognlsed immediately in the profit or loss as past
sErvice cesl

A

13 Income Taxes
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Income lax expense represents the sum of the tax cu rrently pavable and deferred tax
(i] Currenttax

The tax currently payable Is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the standalone staloment of proft and less because of [Loms
of income or axpense that are taxable or deductible in other vears and items that are never
Lixable or deductible, The Company's current tax §5 caleulated using tax rates thar have heon
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting peerho]

(i) DefervedTax
Deterved tax is recognised on temporary differences hetween the carrying amounts of assets
and labilities o the financial statements and the corresponding tax bages used in the
computation of lazable profit. Deferred tax Habilities are generally recognised for all taxabic
temporary dilfevences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable prafits will be available
against which these deductible temporary differences can be utilised, Such deferred tay assets
and Jiabilities are ool recognised i the wmporary difference arises from the initial
recognition ol assets and labilities In a transaction that affects neither the taxahle profil nor
the accounting prafit,

The carrylng amount of deferred Lax assets is reviewed al the emd of each reparting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficlent taxable profits will be
avallable te allow atl or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reparting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the Lax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting
perlod, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

(ii} Current and defecred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss, except when thioy
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, In
which case, the curvent and deferred tax are also recopnised in other comprehensive income
or divectly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the aceounting for the
business combination

14 Derivative financial fnstrmments

Derivatives are Inltizlly recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entersd [nto
and are subsequently re-measured to thelh Fair value at the end of each reporting poriod.
Derivatives are carvied as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial labilities
when the fair value is negative.

15 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnlngs per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
EPS Is caleulated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the
company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Where
ardinary shares are issued but not fully paid, they are treated in the calculation of basic earnings per
share as a lraction of an ordinary share to the extent that they were entitled ta participate in
dividends during the period relative to a fully paid ordinary sharve, Diluted earnings per shore is
computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equily shares
constdered For deriving basic EPS and also welghted average number of equity shares that could
have been Issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares, Dilutive potential equity
shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date, Dilutive

potential equity shaees are determined independently for cach peried presented, i
"
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16 Falr Value Measurement

A number of Company's aceounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value,
for hoth financial and non-fnancial assews and labilites. Falr value s the price that would he
received on sell of an asset or paid Lo transfec a labllity in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, A fair galile measurement assunes that the transaction Lo sell
Lhe assel oF transfor the liability takes place either in the principal market for the assct or liability or
ln the absence of a principal market, in the maost advantageous market for the asset or Hability. The
principal market or the most advantageous market must he accossible to the Company.

The fair value of an asset or fiability Is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the assct or lability, assuming thal markel participants act in their
coohamic best interest

A Fair value measurement of & non-Anancial asset tales into account a market participant’s ahility to
generare economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to amother
market pacticipant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation technigques that are appropriate in Lthe circumstances ane for which
sufficient data are available to measure Gir value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assits and liahilities for which Giir value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financal
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole, The fair value hierarchy is described as below:

(a] Lewel 1 -unadjusted quoted prices i active markets for identical assets and liabilities,

(b)  Lewal 2 -lnputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable far the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

fc] Level 3 -unobservable inputs for the assetor liabilivy.

Far assets and liabilities that are recognized in the standalone financial statements at Fair value ona
recurving basis, the Company determines whether transfers have ocourred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorizalion at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpese of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets anl
liabilities an the hasis of the naturs, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level af
Falr value hisrarchy.

Fair values bave been determined for measurement and / or disclosure purposes based on the
following methods, When applicable, further information about the assumptions made in
determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

fa] [Investment in eguity and debt secutities

The fair value is determined by reference to their quoted price at the reporting date, [n the
absence of quated pricsgthe fair value of the financlal asset is measured using valuation
techniques.

(B} ‘Tradeand other receivables

The Fair value of trade and other receivables, excluding construction contracts in progress, s
estimated as the present vahte of future cash fAows, discounted at the market rate of interest
at the reporting date. However in respect of such financial instruments, fair value ganevally
approximates the carrying amount due te short term nature of such assets This fair value is
determined for disclosure purposes or when acquired in a business combination.

(¢} MNon derlvative Ainancial liabilities

Fair Value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present
value of future principal and interest cash Hows, discounted at the market rate of interest at
B

P
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the reportng date. For finance leases, the market rate of Interest is determined by reference
to similar lease apresmonts.

1Y Current / non- earrent classification

Anasset is classified as current 1F

(8] itisexpected to be realized v sold or consumed o the Company’s normal sperating eyecle;
(b]  itisheld primarily for the purpose of tracing:

[c} itisexpected ta be realised within twelve months alter the reparting pericd; or

{d} itis cash orcash equivalent unless it is restricted from belng exchanged or vaed ta settle 2
liahility for at least twelve months alter the reporting period.

Al other assets are classified as non-current,
A liability is classified as curvent ik
[a) itis expected to be settled in normal operating cyele
(b} itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
[e] Itis expected to be seitled within twelve months after the reperting period;

{d] it has no unconditional vight to defer the settlement of the lability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other lHabilities are classified as non-current,
Deferred tax assets and labilitios are classified as non-current assets and liahilities,

The operating cycle is the time between acquisition of assets for processing [/ trading / assembling
and thelr realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has ldentified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

18 Cash and cash equivalent

The Company considers all highiy liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertibie into
known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change In walue and having
original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents, Cash
and cash equivalents consists of balances with banks which are wnrestricted for withdrawal and
USAge
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